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  [12.35 pm] 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you.  Just for any submitters present that have not been 

engaged in the process previously, this is just to advise you that a pre-

hearing is about making directions relating to conferencing, expert 5 

conferencing and mediation, the filing of evidence, applying for cross-

examination and directions affecting hearing.  It is not an occasion to 

actually go into the merits today. 

 

 So we will first of all go ahead and just record appearances.  10 

Mr Winchester. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Carranceja. 15 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, for the Crown. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Sir, Ms Crawford appearing for Silver Fern Farms, 

Kennaway and Castle Rock. 20 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Marks?  Sorry, Mr Hutchings? 

 

MR HUTCHINGS:   Mr Hutchings for the Equus Trust. 

 25 

SJH:   For? 

 

MR HUTCHINGS:   Equus Trust. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Marks? 30 

 

MS MARKS:  Sir, I appear for Carter Group Limited, Fletcher Building 

Limited and NPT (ph 1.11) Limited. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Mehlhopt? 35 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, sir, for the Canterbury Regional Council and also the 

joint further submission of Canterbury Regional Council, Selwyn 

District Council, Waimakariri District Council and Te Runanga o Ngai 

Tahu. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Scheele? 

 

MR SCHEELE:   I am representing Tui Campers Limited. 

 45 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Robinson, is it? 
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MS NICOL:   Ms Nicol. 

 

SJH:   Nicol. 

 5 

MS NICOL:   For Lyttelton Port Company, Christchurch International Airport, 

Waterloo Park and Orion. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you.  Mr Leckie? 

 10 

MR LECKIE:  Yes, Mr Leckie, sir, for Ngai Tahu Property, Progressive 

Enterprises, M&B Properties Limited, Bunnings Limited and Kiwi 

Property Group and Kiwi Property Holdings Limited. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Limmer? 15 

 

MS LIMMER:   Yes, sir.   

 

SJH:   Just wait so that it goes on the record. 

 20 

MS LIMMER:  Yes, sir, for Fulton Hogan Limited.  I have filed a memo 

earlier today seeking leave to be excused. 

 

SJH:   Yes.  And you are seeking leave to be actually excused today? 

 25 

MS LIMMER:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Well you may be. 

 

MS LIMMER:   Thank you sir. 30 

 

SJH:   But it was so late we could not notify you. 

 

MS LIMMER:   No, I understand. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you.  And Mr Bagchi, you are here again for Avonhead 

Community. 

 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   Yes, sir. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 

MS ROBINSON:   Excuse me, sir. 

 

SJH:   Sorry. 45 
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MS ROBINSON:   Ms Robinson for the Ilogan Trust. 

 

SJH:   Sorry, I did not hear. 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Ms Robinson - - - 5 

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 

MS ROBINSON:   - - - for the Ilogan Trust. 

 10 

SJH:   For the what Trust? 

 

MS ROBINSON:   Ilogan, I-L-O-G-A-N. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  The statement of issues in the, sorry. 15 

 

MR LA MARQUAND:   David le Marquand for the oil companies. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 20 

MR CLEARY:   Mr Cleary for Wilson, Martin and Jane. 

 

SJH:   Sorry Mr Cleary, you are for who again? 

 

MR CLEARY:   Wilson, Martin and Jane, submitter 2278. 25 

 

SJH:  Thank you. 

 

MS ASTON:   And Fiona Aston for Fodder Cube Products Limited. 

 30 

SJH:   Is there anyone else at the back that is actually appearing and wishing to 

be heard? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   Steve Marshall for Every Import Limited. 

 35 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR MUIR:   Rowan Muir for Generation Zero and 350. 

 

  [12.40 pm] 40 

 

SJH:   Sorry, you will have to speak more distinctly than, Mr Neilson, is it? 

 

MR MUIR:  Rowan Muir for Generation Zero and 350. 

 45 

SJH:   Thank you.  Any others? 
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MR McLACHLAN:   Mr McLachlan for Fletcher Residential Limited. 

 

SJH:   Fletcher Residential.  Have we got everybody now then?  All right, 

thank you.  Now, the statement of issues and the red line version have 5 

been filed, Mr Winchester? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, they have.  I am not sure that a red line version has 

been filed. 

 10 

SJH:   Well, if it can be done, the main thing is scope.  The one thing that we 

talked about, the Judge and I talked about before we came in, related to 

the Richmond Working Men’s Club and the issue around that.  Where 

have we got to for that? 

 15 

MR WINCHESTER:   I have been in discussions with Ms Walsh for the 

Richmond Working Men’s Club and I think a memorandum has been 

filed, she is not here, or is about to be filed seeking deferral to stage 3 

on that particular issue because they made a holding submission on the 

scheduled site provisions which may be rendered redundant effectively.  20 

So I think both the Council and Richmond Working Men’s Club are 

content that it can be dealt with as part of stage 3 if that is acceptable to 

the Panel. 

 

SJH:   I suppose we should actually tackle this although it seems to cover 25 

everything, a very, very late joint memorandum from the – with no 

indication what legal firm filed it or anything but signed by counsel for 

Ngāi Tahu and you, Mr Carranceja.  We haven’t had a chance to cross-

reference everything referred to in this but, for example, it seeks to 

have things relating to strategic directions deferred to stage 3 when we 30 

have already issued a decision. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, that is actually a request by Ngāi Tahu, we jointly 

compiled provisions. 

 35 

SJH:   Well, your name is on it. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, that is correct, sir. 

 

SJH:   And the other worry we have is without cross-referencing all these rules 40 

it seems it may well emasculate entire chunks of stages. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   That is not the intention, sir. 

 

SJH:   It may not be the intention but the first glance it seems like that. 45 
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MR CARRANCEJA:   Well, I can assure you - - - 

 

SJH:   Perhaps we can hear from Mr Leckie. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, I can assure you that the intention is to pull out 5 

those natural and cultural heritage provisions, it is only about natural 

and cultural heritage provisions.  It is similar to what was done, sir, in 

stage 1 subdivision. 

 

SJH:   I understand but there seems to be an awful lot more of it this time 10 

around. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, there are, but we are not talking about the majority 

of chapters, sir.  I appreciate the Panel hasn’t had had the chance to 

look at it, sir, but it is really the open space proposal that does have a 15 

lot of overlap.  The others are, if you like, minor parts of overlap. 

 

SJH:   Yes, but the attachment doesn’t tell us how they could impact on other 

parts of the chapter and render a hearing in stage 2 a waste of time.  It 

probably doesn’t, I don’t know, but there has been no effort in this 20 

document to do that, has there? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, sir, not in that - - - 

 

SJH:   There is no consideration given to it.  Well, perhaps we had better hear 25 

from Mr Leckie. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Leckie, why is strategic direction in here when we have given a 30 

decision on it? 

 

MR LECKIE:   Yes, sorry, sir, I am not completely familiar with that memo. 

 

SJH:   Well, I guessed you were the one who got the hospital pass today. 35 

 

MR LECKIE:   Yes, and I haven’t been involved in the open space chapter but 

perhaps I could raise it with my colleague, Ms Walsh, who is involved 

in that and she will be along for other chapters because unfortunately 

that is all I can add. 40 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   If I could flag an anxiety I might have about it which is 

while this issue has surfaced before obviously we have an obligation to 

be satisfied that what we determine satisfies the requirements of part 2 

of the Act in accordance with the requirements of section 32 in terms of 45 

considering alternatives and so forth.  So it is important that if a request 
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like this is made that we have got enough basis for being satisfied that, 

as the Chair has indicated, nothing is emasculated particularly those 

matters under part 2.  Now, obviously there is an existing district plan 

in place and a set of controls in that that may well be relevant but we 

haven’t been told about it yet. 5 

 

  [12.45 pm] 

 

SJH:   And I think you got that assurance in subdivision, Judge. 

 10 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I did. 

 

SJH:   From the Council so I think before we come back to these other matters 

if you would speak to Ms Walsh and, Mr Winchester, you are not party 

to this I know, but again we would be seeking the assurance from you 15 

that the existing plan is going to cover things off so there is no risk 

here. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, sir, I haven’t had instructions on this.  I was given 

notice of it yesterday afternoon and didn’t have the opportunity to take 20 

instructions, and I still haven’t had the opportunity to talk to my client 

to understand exactly what the implications are, but on their face they 

do look quite significant given what is attached to the memorandum in 

terms of the sheer volume of provisions which are proposed to be 

deferred. 25 

 

 And, again without instructions, the initial reaction from just looking at 

it but without analysing it from Council officers I have spoken to is that 

they are concerned at the impact it might have on stage 3 if there are 

several matters already being deferred to stage 3 quite discreet. 30 

 

SJH:   Well, when we started out there was never a stage 3. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is right, sir.   

 35 

SJH:   And now everything is getting dumped into it. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   And that is a concern. 

 

SJH:   That is not a criticism. 40 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   No. 

 

SJH:   It is just the reality of what has happened. 

 45 

MR WINCHESTER:   Correct, sir. 
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SJH:   But given our deadlines it is - - - 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   And, with that in mind, the Council is quite conscious 

of simply deferring matters to stage 3 because they appear to be 5 

convenient and it might allow for a more holistic view of certain issues 

but of course there is swings and roundabouts on that because taking 

those matters away to that point and hearing them at that point means 

that certain key issues might not be in the forefront of the Panel’s 

thinking at an earlier stage.   10 

 

 And I am conscious that the Panel has already sat on matters, heard 

evidence on them and deferred decisions and in my submission, from a 

point of principle rather than any specific comment on this 

memorandum, the Council’s preference is that matters are heard and 15 

that evidence is led and if evidence relates to later matters of course it 

can simply just be relied on again.   

 

SJH:   Well, the other concern I would have is that it seems to me extraordinary 

that you haven’t been involved in the process of a memorandum like 20 

this where there is agreement between Ngāi Tahu and the Crown 

without reference to the Council. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well - - - 

 25 

SJH:   Which would have then given you the opportunity because if it renders 

ineffectual other parts of our hearings, which Mr Carranceja is saying it 

doesn’t but that is his maybe, no one has had a chance or we haven’t 

had a chance and you haven’t had a chance to check that yet, it is a 

matter of concern.  But I don’t think it actually impacts on this pre-30 

hearing but you had better get Ms Walsh along and you had better get 

her to talk to Mr Winchester.  Are you here for subdivision, 

Mr Winchester? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   No, I am not, sir, and I am not here for rural and I 35 

suspect it is the rural chapter that it may have the greatest impact. 

 

SJH:   Can you at the end of this hearing speak with Mr Leckie? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I can, sir. 40 

 

SJH:   Because we won’t be granting anything under this until we are satisfied 

that it is not going to have that kind of impact on the rest of the 

chapters and again I agree with you that we have had to have it done by 

chapters, we have had to split chapters for convenience sake and 45 

resource constraints, but it would be unfortunate if we start just slipping 
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matters over into stage 3 which already has two very large matters to be 

heard. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well, I am conscious that it is going to be fairly 

condensed after the New Year anyway and to sort of backload that 5 

additional pressure is I think undesirable for all parties, given there is 

going to be a need anyway to try and reconcile all the decisions and all 

the evidence, and obviously parties need to assist the Panel in doing 

that.  We probably need to have as much time as possible to do that 

without hearing evidence for the first time.  I can indicate I am meeting 10 

with my client this afternoon on this memorandum and we expect to be 

in a position to address the Panel at the rural pre-hearing meeting 

tomorrow on its implications. 

 

SJH:   All right.   15 

 

MR LECKIE:   And just to confirm Ms Walsh will be here for the subdivision 

PHC and the rural. 

 

SJH:   Well, that is not going to help us because Mr Winchester needs to be 20 

involved in this because he is taking the lead for the Council. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Sir, if I could just lend my support to Mr Winchester’s 

comments for Silver Fern Farms and Kennaway, their initial view of 

the memorandum is it does create some procedural issues for 25 

submitters that are already in informal discussions with the Council 

over, for example waterway setbacks, and so we are just mindful of the 

position of submitters who will then have everything sheeted (ph 5.07) 

home to Christmas. 

 30 

  [12.50 pm] 

 

SJH:   No, I completely understand and it sort of came from out of left field 

being so late and a matter of some significance. 

 35 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   I hope I don’t now seem hypocritical but are you making a formal 

application to us, Mr Winchester, if it hasn’t already been made in your 

memo that Richmond Working Men’s Club be deferred to stage 3 or 40 

have we already dealt with that? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, I am making the application now on the assumption 

or understanding that possibly a joint memorandum to that effect is on 

its way to the Secretariat today. 45 
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SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I have certainly seen it and approved it. 

 

SJH:   Well, we will deal with it on the memorandum then when it does come 5 

in. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Does any anybody, any counsel for starters, have issue with the scope as 10 

outlined in the statement of issues? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, just one issue we have noted and obviously the 

presumption we are making is that all the MAIL references are to be 

heard as part of the MAIL proposal.  Just one new thing, sir. 15 

 

SJH:   Well, we should say on that that in the normal course of events one 

would have expected this chapter to be heard followed by MAIL or 

MALL (ph 1.20) or whatever they call themselves because it is going 

first is rather the puppy chasing the dog rather than the other way 20 

around. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   But there are reasons for that happening both relating to Council and 25 

witnesses that make it necessary but the Judge and I have discussed this 

and quite clearly no decision will be made until the evidence on both is 

heard and they will be considered together. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir, okay.  That is good, sir, and the last 30 

thing we have noted is through our trawl of some of the submissions, 

sir, we have noted there is a submission by the Awatea Residents 

Association.  I am not sure where it has been allocated in terms of the 

proposals by the Council.  It might be subdivision but the request is 

simply this, sir, that they seek a rezoning of their land from New 35 

Neighbourhood zone to a form of Industrial.  I haven’t heard through 

the submitters here as to whether - - - 

 

SJH:   What is the submitter number? 

 40 

MR CARRANCEJA:   The submitter number, sir, is 2306. 

 

SJH:   It doesn’t seem to have been coded under this. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   And the registrar has helpfully just put it up on the 45 

screen, sir.  So if we go - - - 
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SJH:   We have had continual problems with coding still unfortunately. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Well, sir, it is the bold underlined bit, sir.  It is the 

request by that Association, you can see they seek a rezoning to some 5 

sort of Business Light Industrial.  My query simply, sir, is whether that 

is a matter that the Panel would prefer to hear as part of the industrial 

and commercial hearing rather than, and I am not quite sure where it 

has been coded, sir.  Subdivision is what we think it has been coded as, 

sir, but perhaps the Council can confirm that coding. 10 

 

SJH:   We are just about to find out perhaps. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   It is in issue 14 of this memorandum I believe, sir. 

 15 

SJH:   Right. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sir, I think it is within the scope of this matter.  You 

will see issue 14C, land at Awatea as to whether - - - 

 20 

SJH:   Issue 14? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   C, page 10 of the memorandum, sir. 

 

SJH:   So it seems to be covered off here. 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   So perhaps we just need to add submission No  2306 to 

that item, sir. 

 

SJH:   Well, it is. 30 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   I am sorry, I missed that, my apologies. 

 

SJH:   Anything else, Mr Carranceja? 

 35 

MR CARRANCEJA:   No, sir, it is my oversight. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  Ms Crawford, any issues, anything that is not 

covered off by the statement of issues from your perspective? 

 40 

MS CRAWFORD:   I am quite comfortable on the issue of scope, sir, just a 

question perhaps for the Panel to consider relates to Castle Rock.  That 

involves two submissions coded 2168 and 2169.  Those submissions as 

lodged seek alternative relief, a combination of Industrial, Residential 

or potentially Residential.   45 
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 The reference is to Port Hills but I am conscious that the New 

Neighbourhood zone is taking on a life of its own at the moment, sir, 

and we have a pre-hearing later this month.  So some guidance from the 

Panel on how you wish to handle submitters that are seeking a mix of 

Industrial Residential, do you want them to turn up twice or turn up 5 

potentially three times if New Neighbourhood becomes a later hearing?  

We are happy to go with the Panel on this but it might be something 

that a number of submitters are interested in. 

 

  [12.55 pm] 10 

 

SJH:   Sorry, you are appearing for Castle Rock? 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Correct, sir.  The submission is lodged in the name of 

Fiona Aston who is here today and I am appearing as counsel. 15 

 

SJH:   Okay.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   How does the land relate to the New Neighbourhood 

zone, just to clarify that? 20 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Neither of the submissions expressly seek 

New Neighbourhood zone, it has the consequential relief sought in the 

submission but my understanding is a number of the areas around 

Heathcote are likely to be included in New Neighbourhood zonings and 25 

if the New Neighbourhood zone is up for further consideration it may 

well be that these submitters submit on that if it is re-notified or 

contend that their relief is sufficiently wide in scope to cover a New 

Neighbourhood zoning.  I haven’t got instructions on that specific point 

but I am just foreshadowing, not just this client but a number of 30 

submitters may be seeking a Residential zoning that may morph into 

New Neighbourhood zone. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   We are going to be hearing on New Neighbourhood zones 

in a couple of weeks pretty much from now.  Is the characteristic of the 35 

land such that it could be a New Neighbourhood zone on its own? 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Potentially, sir, we need to look at that in more detail with 

the expert evidence and guidance.  But I am just mindful that we have 

got a timetabling order where we will be seeking tomorrow for the 40 

residential chapter but some of these submitters they are also seeking 

industrial zoning over part if not all of the land, which is what we are 

talking about this afternoon, and I would appreciate some guidance on 

whether you would like submitters to turn up at each of these hearings. 

 45 
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SJH:   Yes, I think to safeguard yourself you have got to file evidence in this 

one and treat it as if you are in this one as well as the other at this stage. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you, sir, and it may be the same evidence - - - 

 5 

SJH:   You are right that New Neighbourhood has taken on a life of its own 

and it doesn’t have any easy resolution, the particular points that have 

been raised by the memo.  But I think it is a matter entirely for you but 

I would be inclined to be filing evidence and advancing your position 

here and if, before the hearing, it becomes obvious we will reserve the 10 

right to you to apply for it to be transferred to another hearing if it is 

deemed to be more appropriate when you have received full 

instructions on it and some of the issues around New Neighbourhood 

are resolved. 

 15 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   So I just so order.  And I think you should also be prudent to turn up at 

the New Neighbourhood hearing and that will apply also to submitters 

in the same position as your client Castle Rock. 20 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you.  Mr Hutchings, have you got any issue with the 

statement of issues? 25 

 

MR HUTCHINGS:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Marks? 

 30 

MS MARKS:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Mehlhopt? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   No, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   Mr Leckie? 

 

MR LECKIE:   Just one point, sir, it is Ngāi Tahu Property wish to withdraw 

one of their submission points so that is issue 14B, a site specific 40 

rezoning, they won’t be pursuing that. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Well, there is leave to withdraw that, Mr Leckie, thank you.  

Ms Nicol? 

 45 

MS NICOL:   No, sir. 
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SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Limmer? 

 

MS LIMMER:   No, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Scheele? 

 

MR SCHEELE:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Robinson? 10 

 

MS ROBINSON:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Okay.  Mr Cleary? 

 15 

MR CLEARY:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Aston? 

 

MS ASTON:   Sir, just one point, issue 14 9.2.  It doesn’t seem to quite make 20 

sense.  It lists a number of sites where rezoning is sought and it says, 

“The following land is identified in the LURP and - - - 

 

SJH:   I am sorry you are going to have to speak more clearly and a little 

louder. 25 

 

MS ASTON:   Sorry.  So 9.2. 

 

SJH:   What part of 9.2, is it? 

 30 

MS ASTON:   The second sentence. 

 

SJH:   Right. 

 

MS ASTON:   “The following land is identified in the LURP in chapter 6 of 35 

the Regional Policy Statement as a greenfield Residential Priority 

Area”  My client’s land is covered by (d) and that is not a greenfield 

Residential Priority Area in the LURP.  It is currently zoned Rural and 

I think the references are probably incorrect to a number of the other 

sites listed there.  So it is just to draw your attention - - - 40 

 

SJH:   But the relief you are seeking is correctly set out there, is it? 

 

MS ASTON:   Yes, it is. 

 45 

  [1.00 pm] 
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SJH:   We will just hear from Mr Winchester then. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Sorry, that is, there has been an issue with formatting.  

That sentence on paragraph 9.2 should be separated from the 5 

proceeding sentence so - - - 

 

SJH:   In a new paragraph? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:  - - - yes, the first part of paragraph 9.2 relates to the land 10 

identified at C above so basically the paragraph should be split between 

the two sentences.  Sorry, the whole paragraph should relate to C 

above. 

 

SJH:   So do we just delete 9.2? 15 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   We delete the word “following” in the second sentence. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   The land, so it just says, “the land was - - - 

 20 

SJH:   It should be, should it be, “the land above is identified”? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 25 

 

SJH:   What should the heading then be for A through I? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   I am advised by Mr Stevenson they should be re-

numbered to D, E, F et cetera and that essentially the following 30 

submissions raise issues as to the appropriateness of the zoning as 

notified by the Council which is the issue so really 9.2 needs to relate 

to C above in its totality and each of those paragraphs following are 

issues which relate to the primary issue, if that makes sense.  It is a bit 

messy. 35 

 

SJH:   So the two sentences beside 9.2 relate only to paragraph C? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, correct. 

 40 

JUDGE HASSAN:   So if we shifted them up and renumbered them as Roman 

numerals I to whatever, that would be what you mean? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That would work nicely, sir. 

 45 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Okay, thank you. 
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SJH:   Well even as background if we say in relation to the land set out at C - - 

- 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes. 5 

 

SJH:   - - - et cetera and then A, B, C, D becomes D, E, F. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Correct, thank you. 

 10 

SJH:   Okay, thank you. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Apologies for that confusion. 

 

SJH:   No, no, it happens. 15 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Sir, sorry to jump to my feet but I am not quite sure that is 

the point Ms Aston is raising because it occurred (INDISTINCT 2.32) 

- - - 

 20 

SJH:   Well we will let Ms Aston say that because is this your client?  Are you 

acting or not? 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   I am acting on items B and C which is the Castle Rock 

submitters.  The point being I think in a nutshell, sir, is that the land on 25 

the list, at least B and C for whom I represent, are not identified as 

greenfield residential priority areas.  That statement suggests they are. 

 

SJH:   Is it the land in B and C are not? 

 30 

MS CRAWFORD:   Correct, and I suspect the same for D as Ms Aston has 

pointed out. 

 

SJH:   Well it does not apply to D.  We are told it only applies to the land in C 

but you are saying it is not. 35 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   No, oh, yes, correct, sir.  So under 9.2, I can only speak 

for sub-paragraphs B and C. 

 

SJH:   Well look, what we have been told at the moment is take out C and the 40 

paragraph, the two sentences beside 9.2, and then you have, “the 

following submission raises issue as to the appropriateness of the 

zoning identified by Council, A, B, what is now D, E, F, G all the way 

through.  Correct? 

 45 
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MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir and the effect is of course if that is made clear 

then the - - -  

 

SJH:   The point that is now being made is that the land in C, we are being told 

is not identified in the LURP as greenfield residential priority. 5 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   We are talking about a different C sir.  So if you scroll 

right up, the C that I think my friend Mr Winchester is talking about is 

under issue 14. 

 10 

MR WINCHESTER:   Well they are all under issue 14. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Following the two sentences if you had heard me, it is not now A, B, C.  15 

It is D, E, F, G.  So your C is F and is simply limited to, “the following 

submissions raise issue as to the appropriateness of the zoning as 

notified by Council”. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Yes, sir, that is fine. 20 

 

SJH:   So the two sentences only apply to the first C. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Correct. 

 25 

SJH:   And we no longer have a second C. 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   Clarified sir, thank you. 

 

SJH:   So Ms Aston does that take care of your concerns too? 30 

 

MS ASTON:   That’s fine. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you. 

 35 

MS CRAWFORD:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:  Professor Bagchi, do you have any issues with the matters that are 

raised? 

 40 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Muir? 

 

MR MUIR:   No issue. 45 
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SJH:   And Mr McLachlan? 

 

MR McLACHLAN:   No issues sir. 

 

SJH:   And Mr Marshall, is it? 5 

 

MR MARSHALL:   Yes, I do not know anything what that is all about, 

(INDISTINCT 4.53) about New Brighton (INDISTINCT 4.55) 

 

SJH:   You are all at sea on it. 10 

 

MR MARSHALL:   New Brighton. 

 

SJH:   Well anyway you tell us what you are here for. 

 15 

MR MARSHALL:   About rezoning my property from B to E, to Residential. 

 

SJH:   So where is your property, just tell us? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   On Beresford Street. 20 

 

  [1.05 pm] 

 

SJH:   So your application is to rezone what number Beresford Street? 

 25 

MR MARSHALL:   23. 

 

SJH:   23 Beresford Street to? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   Well to Commercial Core.  (INDISTINCT 0.22) 30 

residential and I’m (INDISTINCT 0.24).  So I lose all, I am only 306 

square metres.  So if it goes residential I cannot even build on it.  So I 

want it to be seen as either alternatively move the core or leave it the 

way it is. 

 35 

SJH:   So what is your neighbour? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   My neighbour?  Well the neighbour to the side he wants 

the same, he doesn’t (INDISTINCT 0.41) 

 40 

SJH:   Yes but are they residential houses as well? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   No there are three.  The neighbour at number 21.  I am 

number 23 and then the Council owns number 25. 

 45 
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SJH:   All right.  So should that be a piece of land that is included in issue 14 

then? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   Well the Council did say did I want to buy it? 

 5 

SJH:   You can stay up here, Mr Stevenson, it might be easier.  Because again 

it is simply seeking – it is challenging the appropriateness of the 

zoning, isn’t it? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir, it is covered in issue 5.   10 

 

SJH:   Issue 5? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, it is a New Brighton issue in terms of commercial 

zoning at New Brighton. 15 

 

SJH:   Right, okay. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   There is Beresford Street mentioned there. 

 20 

SJH:   So this is Commercial in New Brighton? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   It is an oddball that the zone is B2P. 

 

SJH:   Yes, well it is covered in the statement of issues, Mr Marshall. 25 

 

MR MARSHALL:   Yes, so that is all I need to say? 

 

SJH:   Yes, we will come to whether you want to file evidence in matters such 

as that shortly, okay? 30 

 

MR MARSHALL:   All right, appreciate it, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Yes.  The date for mediation if needed is Wednesday 9, and 

10 September with Mr Mills.  Does anybody take issue with those 35 

dates?  Thank you they are confirmed for expert conferencing.  There’s 

Mr Sutherland, Tuesday 18 August and Wednesday 19.  Is anybody 

calling expert witnesses have issues with those dates?  Thank you they 

are confirmed.   

 40 

 Your evidence, Mr Winchester, sorry the red line version, same time as 

your evidence, 2 September. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:  Sir, thank you. 

 45 
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SJH:   Thank you.  Submitter evidence Thursday 17 September.  So we will go 

round now and just get an indication of evidence.  Does the Crown 

propose calling evidence?   

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 5 

 

SJH:   And before you start, Mr Carranceja, I will just make the general 

comment we have made earlier.   

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Yes, sir. 10 

 

SJH:   That we expect where parties are calling more than one expert those 

experts talk together so that we do not face the situation we have had 

earlier in other chapters that it is unnecessary to repeat in detail all we 

have heard about the superior documents.  We can just about recite the 15 

evidence by heart now, so just a reference to them and the fact they are 

taken into account is sufficient.  And even where they are different 

witnesses from those called in earlier chapters, if they are simply 

stating the same evidence they can adopt that in cross reference rather 

than set it out in full.  So if you could give us your list of witnesses 20 

now, Mr Carranceja? 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you sir.  A total of six witnesses, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 25 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   The first witness will be a witness to address energy 

and resource efficiency matters.  The second witness will be an 

operational witness from NZTA.  The third witness will be a traffic 

engineer, NZTA.  The fourth witness will be a planner dealing with 30 

NZTA matters.  The next witness is a planner dealing with setbacks 

and landscaping and the last will be a planner covering essentially 

everything else, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 35 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Now Ms Crawford, your witnesses? 

 40 

MS CRAWFORD:  Yes, sir. For Silver Fern Farms a planner who has 

appeared prior so I note your comment made a moment ago, and also 

for Kennaway, a planner.  Both of those parties are already in informal 

discussions with the Council.  Their issues are relatively confined. 

 45 

SJH:   Thank you. 
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MS CRAWFORD:   We will advise the Panel if resolution is achieved. 

 

SJH:   We are grateful. 

 5 

MS CRAWFORD:   Castle Rock, slightly more substantive, that affects two 

sites.  There will be a commonality of experts called by the submitter, 

Geotech engineer, a storm water flood management specialist, engineer 

dealing with services, water supply, wastewater and so on, 

transportation engineer, landscape architect and planner. 10 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Hutchings? 

 

  [1.10 pm] 

 15 

MR HUTCHINGS:   Thank you sir.  The Equus Trust will just be calling a 

traffic expert. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Marks? 

 20 

MS MARKS:   Sir, each of Carter Group, Fletcher Building and MPT will each 

call a planner. 

 

SJH:   Is there any chance of them talking and combining into one witness? 

 25 

MS MARKS:   There is some overlap and I would think that Carter Group and 

MPT might discuss (INDISTINCT 0.28) 

 

SJH:   If you can do so it would be helpful, thank you.  Ms Mehlhopt? 

 30 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Sir, at this stage it is proposed that no evidence would be 

filed. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Leckie? 

 35 

MR LECKIE:   Yes, sir.  Ngai Tahu Property will be calling a planner and a 

quantity surveyor in relation to the energy and resources provisions.  

Progressive Enterprises will be calling a planner and potentially, sir, an 

urban designer but he will be referring back to his stage 1 evidence. 

 40 

SJH:   Thank you.  

 

MR LECKIE:   Bunnings Limited and Kiwi will both be calling planners but 

that will be the same planner as Progressive, so there will be an overlap 

there.  And M&B Properties Limited will call a planner, an economist 45 

and a transport engineer. 
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SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Nicol? 

 

MS NICOL:   Lyttelton Port will be calling a planner and company evidence.  

The airport will have a planner.  Waterloo is likely to be limited to a 5 

planner and Orion will have planning and company evidence. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Limmer? 

 

MS LIMMER:   Sir, no, (INDISTINCT 1.35) 10 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Robinson? 

 

MS ROBINSON:   The Ilogan Trust is currently in informal discussions with 

the Council as well and we are hoping to have reached agreement and 15 

avoid the need to file evidence.  If that does not occur, we will be 

calling planning evidence and commercial evidence to look at local 

retail demand. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Cleary? 20 

 

MR CLEARY:   My clients are in ongoing discussions with the Council as well 

in terms of the relief sought and if those discussions are successful it 

may well be that there is no evidence but on the basis that it is 

unsuccessful possibly planning, traffic and infrastructure. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you, the oil companies, I am sorry I forgot also to ask about the 

issues so if you have anything to say on those this would be the 

appropriate time. 

 30 

MR LA MARQUAND:   In terms of the issues sir, no we are happy with those.  

We would be looking to call planning evidence. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Aston? 

 35 

MS ASTON:  Yes, for Foddercube Products a planner and possibly a traffic 

engineer and infrastructure evidence. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. Mr Scheele? 

 40 

MR SCHEELE:   Thank you sir.  We would be planning to bring planning 

evidence, infrastructure evidence, landscaping, a client representative, 

potentially traffic and geotech, and we are also in the process of 

engaging legal counsel. 

 45 
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SJH:   Thank you.  And you would note our comments although I don’t think, 

if your witnesses have given evidence before we can take on board 

what we have said. 

 

MR SCHEELE:   Yes, sir. 5 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Professor Bagchi, are you going to submit or do you wish to 

call evidence? 

 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   Sir at this stage we do not have any evidence but we 10 

are working on it, we will keep you informed in the next couple of 

days. 

 

SJH:   So you may be going to call evidence? 

 15 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   We may be calling. 

 

SJH:   Well if you are going to call evidence we will need to know by close of 

business Tuesday of next week, okay. 

 20 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   We will definitely, yes. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   Thank you. 25 

 

SJH:  Mr Marshall.  Do you wish to call evidence or simply make a 

submission? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   Yes, well I will talk to this chap there and see what the 30 

story is. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Well again if you wish to give evidence, either yourself or call 

witnesses - - - 

 35 

MR MARSHALL:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   - - - the Friend of Submitter will assist you - - - 

 

MR MARSHALL:   Right. 40 

 

SJH:   - - - and that should be done by, we need to be notified again by close of 

business on Tuesday. 

 

MR MARSHALL:   Yes, okay. 45 
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SJH:   Okay, so if you wait at the finish today you will get that information.  

Mr Muir, the Friend of Submitter will also help you if that is necessary, 

but is Generation Zero going to call evidence? 

 

MR……….:  No evidence. 5 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  And Mr McLachlan? 

 

MR MCLACHLAN:   Possibly a planner but I will confirm by the end of day, 

Tuesday. 10 

 

  [1.15 pm] 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Just for the record Mr Winchester, we would be hopeful 

that before this hearing we will hand down our Commercial and 15 

Industrial decision.  And if so we would expect an updated red line 

version.  How long would you need after our decision to do that? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Five working days, sir.  

 20 

SJH:   All right.  Well we will note that. Thank you. 

 

MR WINCHESTER:  Just while I am on my feet, I probably should 

foreshadow an issue in terms of the Council’s evidence which relates to 

the energy and resource efficiency provisions.   25 

 

 The Council will not be in a position to call an expert to support those 

provisions.  The Council’s position as determined by elected members 

is that those provisions remain part of the proposal.  So the task of 

advancing that will be done by legal submission and cross examination 30 

sir.   

 

 But I thought it appropriate to give other parties advance warning that 

that is going to be the position. 

 35 

SJH:   All right, we understand your position Mr Winchester.   

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   I take it however the Council’s position still supports its proposal as 40 

notified? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   That is the formal position, sir, yes. 

 

SJH:   Okay.  I won’t try to read between the lines or second guess you. 45 
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MR WINCHESTER:   We probably don’t have long enough sir, thank you. 

 

SJH:  Thank you. And just to reiterate that submitted evidence is due by 

Thursday 24 of September, sorry Thursday 17 of September.  Rebuttal, 

Mr Winchester, Thursday 24 September? 5 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   Yes, sir.  Thank you. 

 

SJH:  Now our standard procedural document which is online will apply which 

means if anyone wishes to cross examine they need to apply for leave 10 

giving reasons.  The standard time in that document is 10 minutes for 

cross examination, but if anyone believes they need longer, they should 

feel at liberty to apply.  The evidence is pre-circulated, if you wish to 

serve using the website it is required by 3.00 pm on the due date and 

the onus of obligation to serve remains with the parties, it does not rest 15 

on the Secretariat, and if you leave it till after 3.00 pm on that date you 

will be responsible for serving it directly on all submitters.   

 

 Late filing of documents, you need to make application with reasons.  

The evidence as we have done with everything else will be pre-read.  20 

We request from witnesses a highlights package which is, if I can 

remind you to pass on to some of your experts, that does not mean a 

reading of the executive summary.  It is a proper highlights package 

limited to 10 minutes but again an extension can be granted if it is 

necessary. 25 

 

 Legal submissions we will seek a brief legal opening as we have in 

others and people are granted leave if they so wish to simply rely on a 

written opening.  The closing one is where we expect a longer and 

more fulsome closing.  People will have the opportunity to speak to it. 30 

Again those who simply wish to rely on a written legal closing leave is 

so granted.  It needs to be filed however by 3.00 pm on the day prior to 

presentation. 

 

 Hearing dates at the moment are 5, 7, 8 and 9 October and Monday 12 35 

to Thursday 15 October, that is a total of eight days.  Now are there any 

other matters anyone wishes to – sorry. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Sir, a point of clarification, just in respect of the rebuttal 

evidence, sir, I just wanted to clarify that that is an opportunity for 40 

submitter’s to also rebut other submitters’ evidence. 

 

SJH:   Same take though. 

 

MR CARRANCEJA:   Thank you, sir. 45 
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SJH:   Yes.   

 

JUDGE HASSAN:  Ms Mehlhopt - - - 

 

SJH:   Just before we go around, Ms Mehlhopt, there is a question for you. 5 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Yes, I thought I would take the opportunity just to put this 

to you given that you are here.  Because the minute on the New 

Neighbourhood zones did not explicitly reference the Regional 

Council’s interest in regard to the Regional Policy Statement provisions 10 

that New Neighbourhood zones pertain to.  So I wonder if you could 

just take note of the fact that the Panel would value what the Regional 

Council’s position might be on those provisions and therefore the pre-

hearing meeting coming up, it would be very useful I think to have the 

Regional Council attend and indicate then what role it can take in the 15 

hearing that may need to follow. 

 

  [1.20 pm] 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   Yes, sir, and the Regional Council is waiting for the 20 

memorandum to be filed by the city to see how these matters are going 

to be dealt with, and at this stage it is intending to attend the pre-

hearing meeting. 

 

JUDGE HASSAN:   Thank you. 25 

 

SJH:   Mr Winchester, anything from the Council’s point of view? 

 

MR WINCHESTER:   No, sir, thank you. 

 30 

SJH:   Ms Crawford? 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   No, sir, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Mr Hutchings? 35 

 

MR HUTCHINGS:   No, sir, thank you. 

 

SJH:   You’re quite sure we’ve got that section right now for you and 

Ms Aston, because it was confusing, I know. 40 

 

MS CRAWFORD:   We will double check it with Mr Winchester, I think 

we’ve got it now though. 

 

SJH:   Ms Marks? 45 
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MS MARKS:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Mehlhopt? 

 

MS MEHLHOPT:   No, sir. 5 

 

SJH:  Ms Nicol? 

 

MS NICOL:  No, sir. 

 10 

SJH:   Mr Leckie? 

 

MR LECKIE:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Ms Robinson? 15 

 

MS ROBINSON:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Scheele? 

 20 

MR SCHEELE:  No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr le Marquand, oil companies? 

 

MR LA MARQUAND:   No, sir. 25 

 

SJH:   Mr Cleary? 

 

MR CLEARY:   No, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   Ms Aston? 

 

MS ASTON:   No, thank you. 

 

SJH:  Professor Bagchi? 35 

 

PROFESSOR BAGCHI:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Muir? 

 40 

MR MUIR:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Marshall? 

 

MR MARSHALL:   No, sir. 45 
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SJH:   Mr McLachlan? 

 

MR McLACHLAN:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Anything else anyone wants to raise? All right, well, thank you, there 5 

will be a report and directions document will be prepared and posted 

online and served as soon as we can do that. Any queries submitters 

have, unrepresented submitters, do take the opportunity to speak to the 

Friend of submitter today before you leave and he can give you 

assistance if you need it. We will adjourn until 2.30 pm. Thank you. 10 

 

ADJOURNED [1.22 pm] 


